
 

 

 -1- 

 

SOUTH BROWARD DRAINAGE DISTRICT 

GOVERNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 

JANUARY 26, 2017 

 

Present:  

Scott Hodges, Chairperson Kevin M. Hart, District Director 

James Ryan, Vice Chairperson Reina Muniz, Recording Secretary 

Vicki Minnaugh, Treasurer General Public: See Attached List 

Robert E. Goggin, IV, Secretary 

Alanna Mersinger, Commissioner 

 

Thomas Good, Commissioner    

Mercedes Santana-Woodall, Commissioner  

 

Absent: 

Douglas R. Bell, Legal Counsel 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

 

01.   CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

   Chair Hodges called the SBDD Board Meeting to order at 8:03 a.m.; with Vice Chair Ryan, 

Commissioner Minnaugh, Commissioner Mersinger, Commissioner Goggin, and Commissioner 

Santana-Woodall present; followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

02.   PUBLIC COMMENT  

 

None.  

 

03.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

Commissioner Minnaugh moved for approval of the minutes of the December 15, 2016, South 

Broward Drainage District Board meeting.  Motion was seconded by Commissioner Santana-

Woodall and it was carried unanimously. 

 

Commissioner Good joined the meeting at approximately 8:06 a.m 

 

04. DIRECTOR=S REPORT  

 

A. PRESENTATION OF DRAFT SBDD FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE FISCAL 

YEAR ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 BY BARRY FINK, CPA 

District Director Hart stated that a draft report of the SBDD Financial Statement for the Fiscal 

Year Ending September 30, 2016 has been prepared by the District’s accounting firm, 

Margolies, Fink and Wichrowski, Certified Public Accounts (MFW).  Barry Fink, CPA, a 

partner with MFW, presented an overview of the draft report.  

 
Mr. Fink commented that as in prior years, there is a non-qualified opinion issued on this 
financial statement, and there was nothing that required them to change their opinion in any 
way at all.  There were no Management comments that he found necessary to add.  There 



 

 

 -2- 

 

were no recommendations that they felt necessary to include.  This past year, there were no 
major significant changes required by their profession that needed to be noted in the 
statements.  He said that there was not a single change to the opinion.  Mr. Fink said that 
looking at the condition of the District, it was a great year.  There were no major deviations 
from budget to actual, and the District finished the year with an approximate unassigned fund 
balance of $917,000.   
 
Commissioner Minnaugh thanked Mr. Fink for listing everything that was done as part of the 
CIP; and she commented that she did not realize how much activity goes on in the District 
over the course of the year.     
 
District Director Hart indicated that the Final Report would be presented to the Board at the 
February Board meeting.   

 

B. RELEASE AND VACATION REQUEST OF SURFACE WATER MANAGEMENT 

AREA (SWMA) DESIGNATION FOR CALVEIRO RESIDENCE; SUBJECT TO THE 

DEDICATION OF A NEW SWMA  

 

District Director Hart said that the owner of the property located at 6590 S.W. 185th Way, 

Southwest Ranches, FL 33332 is requesting that SBDD vacate the Surface Water 

Management Area (SWMA) that was previously designated and recorded under OR Book 

30326, Page 1162, Broward County Records.  All properties in the SW Ranches are required 

to set aside 20% of their property at elevation 5.0’ (or an equivalent storage area) as a 

SWMA. 

 

The property owner, Mercedes Calveiro, Revocable Trust, will dedicate a new SWMA over 

the property to comply with the 20% SWMA requirement.  District Director Hart said that 

SBDD staff has reviewed the request and has no objections.  There are no financial impacts 

to this Agenda Item, other than SBDD administrative costs; all other costs will be incurred 

by the property owner. 

 

Commissioner Minnaugh moved for approval for the Release and Vacation of the SWMA 

Designation for the Calveiro resident located at 6590 S.W. 185th Way, Southwest Ranches, 

FL; subject to the dedication of a new SWMA in accordance with SBDD Criteria.  Motion 

was seconded by Commissioner Goggin. 

 

Commissioner Goggin commented that he appreciated all the information - the survey, and 

the blue prints that were distributed; because it makes it self-explanatory, and helps with their 

decision making.  Chair Hodges asked if there were any plans for the right-of-way behind the 

property in question.  District Director Hart replied, not at this time. 

 

The questions was called and it was carried unanimously. 

 

C. CONTRACT AWARD(S): 

 

 SBDD TREE REMOVAL & TRIMMING PROJECT AT VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 

MIRAMAR, PEMBROKE PINES, HOLLYWOOD, AND SOUTHWEST RANCHES  

 

District Director Hart stated that SBDD advertised for bids for the Tree Removal/Trimming 



 

 

 -3- 

 

Project at fifteen (15) locations in Miramar, Pembroke Pines, Hollywood, and Southwest 

Ranches.   The District received a total of four (5) bids.  The bid amounts ranged in price from 

$33,428.00 to $68,500.00 for all fifteen locations. 

 
The bid documents allow the District the option of awarding the contract on a split basis. 

The lowest bid for each of the 15 sites varies among the bids.  SBDD has consulted with 

each bidder to determine their interest and agreement to contract for the work on a split 

basis.  Due to the reduced scope of the work, neither Milborne LLC nor DBI Services 

are agreeable to contracting with SBDD on a split basis.  Therefore, it is recommended 

that the bid be awarded to EDJ Service, Inc. (EDJ) for all 15 locations in the amount of 

$33,428.00 as the lowest responsive, responsible bidder.  

 

SBDD has reviewed the bids submitted by EDJ, and has determined that the Contractor 

is qualified to perform the work and the bid meets all requirements.  SBDD is familiar 

with EDJ and has been satisfied with their past work on similar type projects.   
 

The work covered under this project is included as part of the District’s 2016-2017 budget; 

and funding for the project will come from SBDD General Operating account. 

 

Commissioner Minnaugh moved for approval to award SBDD Tree Removal/Trimming 

Project as recommended by the District Director to EDJ Services Inc., in the total amount of 

$33,428.00.   Motion was seconded by Commissioner Goggin. 

 

District Director Hart said that on the District’s Tree Removal Program, all of the 

municipalities are working closely and cooperatively with SBDD.  He said that the District has 

contacted them all, and they are aware of where and what is being done; so that they are in the 

loop.  For specific locations, the District will get a permit, and the cities will waive the permit 

fees.  On one of the sites, a coconut palm tree is being removed, and the City of Hollywood 

requires mitigation for the removal of coconut palm tree; but they are able to mitigate through 

a city project.  District Director Hart indicated that all the cities are working very cooperatively 

with the District to remove these trees that SBDD considers to be a hazard to drainage if they 

fall over into the waters.  

 

Commissioner Mersinger asked if all the homeowners have been contacted and have signed-

off on this.  District Director Hart replied yes.  

 

District Director Hart explained the steps on how the District identifies sites for tree 

trimming/removal.  He said that the response rate is not great, but the District will continue to 

work to try to improve that.   

 

Commissioner Goggin commented that residents tend to get nervous when they see a public 

notice and do not realize that these projects are being done to help them.  He suggested that 

the District educate the residents on why these projects are being done.  District Director Hart 

agreed. 

 

The question was called and it was carried unanimously. 

 



 

 

 -4- 

 

D. AGREEMENT WITH DOUGLAS R. BELL FOR LEGAL SERVICES 

 

District Director Hart presented for the Board’s review and approval the updated Agreement 

with Attorney Douglas R. Bell to provide legal services to SBDD.  The Agreement has been 

revised to incorporate the changes requested by the Board at the December Board meeting. 

 

Funding for SBDD legal services will be through the General Operating Account as part of 

the District’s 2016-2017 budget.  District Director Hart requested approval of the Agreement 

with Douglas R. Bell to provide legal services to South Broward Drainage District in 

accordance with the terms and conditions stipulated in the Agreement. 

Commissioner Minnaugh moved for approval of the Agreement with Attorney Douglas R. 

Bell to provide legal services to SBDD.   Motion was seconded by Commissioner Goggin 

and it was carried unanimously. 

 

E. OTHER 

 

 Update on community meeting at the City of Miramar - District Director Hart made 

the Board aware of a follow-up meeting that the Vice Mayor of Miramar, Max 

Chambers, had scheduled.  District Director Hart said that he had attended a similar 

meeting back in September regarding lake and canal issues; maintenance; the condition 

of the water bodies; and erosion.  He said that the City of Miramar has a program where 

they are funding improvements behind homes outside of our District for erosion 

rehabilitation and protection.  They scheduled a follow-up meeting where he attended 

and Vice Chair Ryan as well.  He said that he presented an overview of what SBDD’s 

function is and what services we provide; and how we cover five municipalities, etc.  It 

was a very positive meeting.   

 

District Director Hart said that along those same lines, there is another neighborhood 

meeting at Turtle Bay, in Commissioner Good’s zone.  He said a Neighborhood Watch 

Meeting is scheduled next Tuesday, January 31st, 2017 at the Community Room at the 

Miramar Police Headquarters at the Miramar City Hall at 7:00 p.m.  He made the Board 

aware that Commissioner Good is interested in attending this meeting, and if any other 

Board members are interested in attending the meeting, to please notify him, because if 

there is more than one Commissioner present, that would preclude any Board member 

from speaking.  

 

 SFWMD News Brief - District Director Hart stated that he received a news brief from 

SFWMD where they got an appeals court decision in their favor that he thought was 

important and could impact the District down the road.  He said that it relates to 

SFWMD being exempt from obtaining a National Pollution Discharge Elimination 

System (NPDES) permit for general water management work that they perform; similar 

to work that the District does; and the appeals court ruled in their favor that they do not 

need to get NPDES permits which is consistent with the District’s practice as well.   

 

District Director added that Broward County just renewed their NPDES permit with the 

state.  He explained that when these permits are renewed, the state will identify any 

impaired waterbodies; and when they determine an impairment, the cities that are within 

these impaired water areas have to implement certain practices to try to reduce the loads.  



 

 

 -5- 

 

He said that under the new permit, there are 10 new impairments. He said that one of 

the impaired waterbodies is the C-11 West, which is one of the widest and largest basin 

areas.  It covers parts of Pembroke Pines, SWR, Cooper City, and Davie; and a portion 

of this basin area is within SBDD.  He said we will see if the District is called in to 

perform any coordination on that aspect; and that the responsibility lies with the cities 

under their NPDES permit.  The City of Miramar had no impairments.  

 

 Water Matters Day - District Director Hart said that Water Matters Day will be held on 

Saturday, March 11, 2017 at the Tree Tops Park.  

  

 CIP Update - District Director Hart said that the District is moving along on their 

maintenance building and hope to have a preliminary set of plans by the end-of-this 

month/beginning of next month, and if all goes well, the District will have that out to 

bid some time near the end of February, and presented to the Board either in March or 

April for contract approval.   

 

Updates on CIP projects are as follows: 

 

 Motors – The first motor has been completed, and the District is scheduled to drop 

off the second motor next week, and then reinstall the first motor. 

 Pumps – They are very close to having the two pumps completed.  They are waiting 

on a final word as to when they will be reinstalled. 

 S-3 Lining of pump tubes – Completed. 

 55th Street Drainage Improvements – Work started this week.   

 

Following are projects that need to be completed: 

 

 Modifying the permit for Basin 8 to allow the District to operate all the gates as part 

of the District’s on-going operating schedule and to be able to move water where 

we believe it is best. 

 Design of the sluice gate and by-pass at the S-8 pump station. 

 

Commissioner Good commented that in regard to Miramar, the City of Miramar is 

performing a number of bank restorations which are being funded through city 

resources.  The concern that he has on some of these meetings is the question that may 

arise as to why the District does not do that too (fund the improvements).  He said that 

it is very fortunate that the District has instituted a policy on canal erosion.  There is a 

document that will address that; and that in regard to Turtle Bay, they will be trying to 

address some of the issues that they have in regards to their erosion.   

 

He also commented that regarding NPDES, he knows that the permit has changed 

substantially because of the WOTUS definition; and that very few cities got away 

without having to deal with impaired waters, because of the fact that they are not 

discharging into an impaired waterbody.  He asked how this relates to SBDD.  He said 

that the District is not on the NPDES permit, but it is still subject to the federal and state 

laws in regards to discharging into impaired waters.  He wanted to know how does 

SBDD deal with that.   



 

 

 -6- 

 

 

District Director Hart explained that in the previous permit there was an impairment on 

Flamingo and Griffin, just outside of our District; and that Cooper City, SWR and DOT 

were named (FDOT was later pulled out).  He reiterated that the responsibility is on the 

cities, under NPDES permit.  He said that the NPDES permit is the mechanism that the 

state uses to impose TMDLs to reduce the impairment; and the role of Central Broward 

Water Control District was to provide information on the drainage system; how the 

water moves, flow patterns, etc.; and they did not have to do the water quality testing.  

He said he expects that when they start holding those meetings on the new impairments 

that the District will be invited so that we can provide that same information, or assist 

them in identifying drainage characteristics and facilities, etc., but he has not heard 

anything yet.   

 

Commissioner Goggin commented that the key is that they are blaming the cities, and 

the District is not a city.  District Director Hart replied that SBDD is not a co-permittee 

under the permit, so the District does not have the same responsibility as the cities; but 

the District will still be involved and a partner in trying to assist.  He said there is a 

possibility that the District could be identified as a cause.  He said it is somewhat new 

ground, because this is the first impairment in SBDD.  

 

Chair Hodges commented that Miramar is very sensitive to NPDES.  He said that you 

won’t get a permit unless you prove that you have applied for and obtained an NPDES 

permit for new construction projects. He said they follow through and are very sensitive 

about it.  That is his experience. 

 

05. ATTORNEY=S REPORT:  

 
 None.  

 
06. APPROVAL OF LEGAL FEES 
 
 Commissioner Minnaugh moved for approval of the legal bills.  Motion was seconded by 

Commissioner Goggin and it was carried unanimously.  

  

07.   BOARD MEMBER’S QUESTIONS/COMMENTS 

 

   Commissioner Goggin commented that IMBC (International Marina & Boatyard Conference) is 

hosting a conference on new/future products and changes in the way they are building docks.  They 

will be discussing the use of proper materials and etiquette to reduce impacts on fish and wildlife.  

He said that he plans on picking up literature, etc. and passing it on to District Director Hart to see 

how the District can implement this into SBDD policies.  Commissioner Goggin also discussed that 

there will be discussions on new technology, such as solar powered equipment that can be mounted 

on decks/docks, which he thought would be of interest to us because the District does not want 

electric on their decks/docks. 

 

   Commissioner Mersinger commented that she sits at the Government Committee for the Chamber 

and that water is now one of their priority issues, and part of their platform. 

 

   Vice Chair Ryan commented that as District Director Hart explained previously, he attended the 



 

 

 -7- 

 

meeting at the City of Miramar.  He said that District Director Hart gave a very comprehensive 

description of our District, and while there may have not been many residents there, there were 

many city officials.  He said we should be very proud of the job that District Director Hart did at 

the meeting.  

 

   Chair Hodges said that he received most of the reports/ratings on the annual performance evaluation 

of District Director Hart, and that overall, there were very good comments.  He gave an overview 

of the comments made by the Board, and noted that District Director Hart received all top marks.

   

08. MEETING DATE(S) 

 
A. Regular Board Meeting will be held on Thursday, February 23th at 8:00 a.m.  

 

Adjournment at 8:44 A.M.  

 

Respectfully submitted,  

  

                                                                            

Robert E. Goggin IV, Secretary 

South Broward Drainage District 

 

 

/rim 

























































































































































































DOUGLAS R. BELL
ATTORNEY AT LAW

CUMBERLAND BUILDING, SUITE 505
800 E BROWARD BOULEVARD

FORT LAUDERDALE, FLORIDA 33301
(954) 524-8526

February 14, 2017

South Broward Drainage District
6591 Southwest 160th Avenue
Southwest Ranches, Florida 33331

*I N V O I C E*

Legal services rendered on behalf of South Broward Drainage District from January 19,
2016 through February 13, 2017:

1. Coordination regarding Public Records Request:

Attorney's Fees:    2 hrs.  25 min. @ $250.00/hr. = $ 604.17

2. Coordination regarding Surplus Property (Land) Policy:

Attorney's Fees:      40 minutes @ $250.00/hr. = $ 166.67

3. Coordination regarding Unclaimed Property (cash bonds):

Attorney's Fees:    7 hrs.  25 min. @ $250.00/hr. =$ 1,854.17
Paralegal Fees:    2 hrs.  20 min. @ $100.00/hr. = $ 233.33

$ 2,087.50

4. Coordination regarding District Financial Statement for Fiscal
Year 2015/16:

Attorney's Fees:       25 minutes @ $250.00/hr. = $ 104.17

****************

TOTAL DUE THIS INVOICE: $ 2,962.51


